



SUDBURY CANOE CLUB

CONSTITUTION & RULES¹

¹ Adopted with effect from January 2025

SUDBURY CANOE CLUB

AFFILIATED TO PADDLE UK

CLUB CONSTITUTION & RULES

NAME:

The club shall be known as the SUDBURY CANOE CLUB, herein after known as THE CLUB

OBJECTIVES:

The objectives of the Club are to promote and enhance the enjoyment of all aspects of the sport and recreation of canoeing.

MEMBERSHIP QUALIFICATION:

Any person who undertakes to behave in the best interest of canoeing for themselves and others shall be eligible for membership.

CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP:

Full Membership: 18 years of age and over.

Family Membership: Two adults and any children they may have up to the age

of 18

Junior Membership: Any person under 18 years of age.

Associate Membership: Any person wishing to be part of the Club, but due to

location cannot partake fully in Club activities

JOINING:

Candidates wishing to join the Club must make a written application to the Membership Secretary on the form provided.

The power of election shall rest with the Committee, who may refuse to accept any applicant without assigning a reason for doing so.

RESTRICTION:

A person who has been expelled from, or refused membership of, Paddle UK shall not be eligible for membership.

RENEWAL:

The Committee may, at its sole discretion, decline to accept renewal of membership, from any person, without disclosing the reason, to any other than the affected parties.

SUBSCRIPTION:

The rates of subscription shall be determined by the Committee. Annual subscriptions will be due on Feb. $1^{\rm st}$ each year, membership after this date will be due at a 6-monthly pro-rata rate.

CESSATION OF MEMBERSHIP

Any member violating any of the rules of the Club or being adjudged guilty of unsatisfactory conduct may, by resolution of the Committee, be suspended or expelled without refund of membership fees.

Any member so suspended or expelled may appeal to a special General Meeting if such an appeal is sponsored by not less than 5 of the members who are entitled to vote.

A member shall be deemed to have resigned from the Club, if after due notice in writing, they have not paid by 1^{s} May the annual subscription which became due on 1^{s} Feb.

They may, however, re-join at any time during that year-

SECTIONS

The Club may organise various sections to cover the various activities of canoeing. The affairs of each section shall be conducted by a sub committee of up to 4 members of whom the Chairperson or their deputy shall serve on the general committee.

DISQUALIFICATION FROM HOLDING OFFICE

Only members who are entitled to vote are eligible to hold office, except that the junior members of the Club may elect a Junior Representative, who is entitled to vote at Committee Meetings.

Any member under the age of 18 shall not be eligible for election to the Committee of the Club, the exception being the Junior Representative.

FINANCIAL INTERESTS

Any Committee Member who has a financial interest in a transaction with the Club (for example a member selling equipment to the Club, providing paid coaching services or receiving a contribution to training costs) shall declare the interest and abstain from voting on that matter.

COMMITTEE

All committee members shall be in an honorary capacity, that is to say unpaid. The Committee shall conduct the affairs of the Club as a whole and shall consist of a Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer, Safeguarding Officer, Safety Officer and any other officers as deemed necessary.

Additionally the Committee may co-opt no more than 6 members of the Club to its number.

Nominations for the position of Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer, Safeguarding Officer, Safety Officer and any other positions shall be put forward in the form of a motion.

The term of office shall be for one year or two years and subject to election or re-election as listed below.

DUTIES OF THE COMMITTEE

The description of roles of committee members is indicative and at any time the committee may agree to divide responsibilities in such a way as best suits their individual skills and available time

CHAIRPERSON – Re-elected every even year:

The Chairperson or their deputy will preside at all General Meetings of the Club and all meetings of the Committee.

They shall be responsible for guiding the activities of the Club in accordance of its rules and wishes expressed by the majority of its members.

They shall ex-officio be a member of any other committees of the Club.

The Chairperson shall also be responsible for the business, fundraising and publicity of the Club or the delegation of such duties to appropriate person.

SECRETARY – Re-elected every even year:

The Secretary will be responsible for the organisation of Meetings of the committee and of the Club, and the recording of minutes relating to such meetings and all correspondence relating to the general business of the Club. They shall also be responsible for transmitting to the section secretaries all correspondence relating to the particular activities of the section concerned at the earliest opportunity.

The Secretary will receive and hold copies of the minutes relating to the meetings of any section meetings.

The Secretary will act as Chairperson when Chairperson is absent or until a new Chairperson is elected through correct procedure.

TREASURER – Re-elected every even year:

The Treasurer will be responsible for organising the collection of all monies and shall keep such books of account as required by the General Meeting.

They shall have the power to examine, after giving 7 working days' notice, the books of any section, and shall report any discrepancies to the Committee.

They shall audit the books or each section annually and shall produce at the AGM balance sheets showing the full financial state of each section and of the general funds.

Any payments exceeding £500 shall be authorised by two unrelated members of the Committee.

The Treasurer must make the Committee aware of any existing or potential financial problems or cash flow problems.

They shall also co-ordinate the collection of monies from training and events. The Treasurer may also nominate an individual to collect monies in their absence.

CLUB CO-ORDINATOR – Re-elected every odd year:

The Club co-ordinator shall be responsible for the co-ordination and compiling of the training and activities programme, and newsletter for the Club. They will also co-ordinate and represent the Club with appropriate external bodies where necessary.

MEMBERSHIP SECRETARY - Re-elected every odd year:

The Membership Secretary will be responsible for the collection of membership forms and related membership fees, updating and maintaining a full list of Club members, and sending out membership renewal notices in February.

They will ensure all membership fees are passed to the Treasurer.

EQUIPMENT OFFICER – Re-elected every even year:

Will be responsible for the regular inspection of all Club equipment, to maintain safety, and general condition.

Will liaise with the committee with regard to repairs, or replacement of kit.

SENIOR REPRESENTATIVE – Re-elected every even year:

The senior representative shall be responsible for assisting in the running of the Club.

They will liaise and assist the Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer and Club coordinator in carrying out the duties for the Club.

Will have special responsibility for the organisation of social events.

JUNIOR REPRESENTATIVE – Re-elected annually:

The junior representative will represent the junior members at the Committee meetings and have a vote on behalf of those members. They shall be of a minimum age of 12yrs old.

SAFEGUARDING OFFICER – Re-elected every odd year:

The Safeguarding Officer shall be responsible for ensuring the Club adopts appropriate policies and procedures for all safeguarding matters for children and vulnerable adults and that those procedures and policies are followed.

SAFETY OFFICER – Re-elected every even year:

The Safety Officer shall be responsible for ensuring the Club adopts appropriate policies and procedures for all matters relating to safety and that those procedures and policies are followed.

ADDITIONAL OFFICERS – Re-elected annually:

Officers may be elected or co-opted, as required, by the committee, at a meeting, to be responsible for nominated duties.

All Committee members must always act in the best interests of the Club.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

- 1. The Committee is responsible of the general conduct of the Club's business and activities.
- 2. The Committee shall meet at regular intervals during the year, as required for the business to be transacted.
- 3. The Secretary on instruction of the Chairperson, or not less than three committee members, shall call special Meetings of the Committee.
- 4. A Quorum shall consist of not less than four members, of which two must

- be from the following: Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer.
- 5. In the case of casual vacancy among the Committee, the said Committee shall appoint another eligible person to act until the next General Meeting.
- 6. Meetings may be held by electronic means such as telephone or video call.

GENERAL MEETINGS:

- 1. An Annual General Meeting shall be held in January each year.
- 2. An Extraordinary General Meeting shall be called on the instructions of a simple majority of the Committee, or on a requisition of not less than 25% of the members entitled to vote.
- 3. Not less than 14 calendar days' notice shall be given, specifying to all members the time and business of the General Meeting.
- 4. Motions for discussion at the AGM, not of origin from within the General Committee, should be passed to the Secretary, through the Senior or Junior Representative, to be added to the agenda.
- 5. At any General Meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided by a show of hands, of those entitled to vote, except when more than one nomination has been received for the position on the General Committee, in which case voting will be a secret ballot, the Teller to be the Secretary.
- 6. At General Meetings the Chairperson will preside, the Secretary taking on this role when absent.
- 7. At all General meetings not less than 20% of the members shall constitute a quorum.
- 8. If after an hour from the time appointed for the meeting, a quorum is not present, the meeting, if called at the request of the members, shall be dissolved.
- 9. In any other case, the meeting shall be adjourned until a time and place fixed by the Committee.
- 10. If a quorum is not present within half an hour of the appointed time for an adjourned meeting, the members present shall constitute a quorum.
- 11. Meetings may be held by electronic means such as telephone or video call.

ACCIDENTAL OMISSION

Accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of a notice of a meeting by any member, shall not invalidate the proceedings of a meeting.

LIABILITY

- 1. The Committee shall manage the affairs of the Club. Financial or legal liability incurred in the rightful exercise of their office shall not, however, be the personal liability of the committee, but shall be the responsibility of the Club as a whole.
- 2. All members or other persons who attend the Club do so at their own risk. Neither the Club nor its officers can accept any liability for loss or injury of any kind.

VOTING

Only Full Members, and Family Members of or above the age of 12 years are entitled to vote at General Meetings.

At any meeting, in the event of a tie, the Chairperson shall have a second

ALTERATION OF THE CONSTITUTION

- 1. The Constitution shall not be altered, amended, or rescinded except by a General Meeting of the Club.
- 2. A resolution to give effect to a change must be passed by at least 75% of the members present at the General Meeting, and voting on this behalf.

DISTRIBUTION OF SURPLUSES

In no circumstance can any surpluses be distributed to members, but any surpluses earned shall be contributed to the General Fund for furthering the objects of the Club.

TERMINATION

The Club shall not Terminate except by the resolution of a Special General Meeting convened for the purpose and in such an event any surplus assets shall be handed over to a body or bodies with similar objects or a charity or charities agreed by the meeting which formally terminates the Club

POWER OF DECISION

Any matter not provided for in this constitution, or any question over the interpretation it shall be dealt with by the Committee whose decision shall be final.

RULES

The General Committee shall be empowered to draw up rules for the safe conduct of canoeing activities, to include the following:

- 1. No person may take part in more than 3 sessions in one year, unless they become a member.
- 2. No Junior Member may take part in activities without permission from a parent or guardian and written confirmation that an adult will be responsible for them, these to be lodged with the Club.
- 3. No Junior Member may take a Club craft unless in the company of a paid up Adult Member.
- 4. No member will be allowed to use a Club craft outside Club activities without prior permission from a Club coach suitable to assess their competence.
 - 5. All Club boats are to be made available to Instructors free of charge.

INSTRUCTORS

1. To have been deemed competent by the committee.

INSTRUCTORS' ASSISTANTS/CLUB LEADERS

1. To have been deemed competent by the Committee or its delegate.